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State of Missouri
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)
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Petitioner,
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)


vs.

)

No. 05-0466 MC



)

JOHN W. MULKEY d/b/a M & M
)

EXCAVATING, a/k/a M & M LANDSCAPE,
)




)



Respondent.
)

DECISION


We grant the motion for summary determination filed by the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“the MHTC”).  John W. Mulkey committed six violations of the laws of Missouri and the United States.
Procedure


On April 1, 2005, the MHTC filed a complaint alleging that Mulkey violated state and federal laws.  Mulkey was served with a copy of the complaint and our notice of complaint/notice of hearing by personal service on June 8, 2005.  Mulkey filed no answer to the complaint.  On July 29, 2005, the MHTC filed a motion for summary determination.  Pursuant to § 536.073.3, RSMo 2000,
 our Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.440(3)(B)3.A provides that we may 
decide this case without a hearing if the MHTC establishes facts that (a) Mulkey does not dispute and (b) entitle the MHTC to a favorable decision.


We gave Mulkey until August 15, 2005, to respond to the motion, but he did not.  Therefore, the following facts as established by the MHTC's exhibits are undisputed.

Findings of Fact

1. Mulkey has his principal place of business at 4708 S. Jewell, Springfield, Missouri.  Mulkey owned and operated a 1987 Peterbilt dump truck (“the truck”), which had a gross vehicle weight rating of 41,000 pounds.
Count I

2. On April 16, 2004, Mulkey used the truck to transport 17.19 tons of asphalt from Journagan Construction & Aggregates’ plant at Ava, Missouri (“the Plant”) to a job site on Route 60 south of Seymour, Missouri, before he had implemented an alcohol and/or controlled substances testing program.

Count II

3. On April 14, 2004, Mulkey used the truck to transport 17.25 tons of asphalt from the Plant to a job site on Route 60 south of Seymour, Missouri, without recording his duty status.

Count III

4. On April 5, 2004, Mulkey used the truck to transport 16.85 tons of asphalt from the Plant to a job site on Route 38 north of Hartville, Missouri, without preserving the driver’s records of duty status for six months after the date of transportation.

Count IV

5. On April 5, 2004, Mulkey used the truck to transport 16.85 tons of asphalt on a public highway from the Plant to a job site on Route 38 north of Hartville, Missouri.  Material Transport Specialist, LLC, (“MTS”) hired and paid Mulkey $82.73 for providing this service.  Mulkey had no property carrier registration authorizing such transport.
6. On April 12, 2004, Mulkey used the truck to transport 17.21 tons of asphalt on a public highway from the Plant to a job site on Route 60 south of Seymour, Missouri.  MTS hired and paid Mulkey $62.64 for providing this service.  Mulkey had no property carrier registration authorizing such transport.
7. On April 30, 2004, Mulkey used the truck to transport 17.03 tons of asphalt on a public highway from the Plant to a job site on Route 60 south of Seymour, Missouri.  MTS hired and paid Mulkey for providing this service.  Mulkey had no property carrier registration authorizing such transport.

Conclusions of Law 


We have jurisdiction to hear this complaint.
  The MHTC has the burden of proving its case by “clear and satisfactory evidence.”
  The MHTC established that Mulkey was a “motor carrier” and drove a “commercial motor vehicle” under 49 CFR 390.5,
 which provides:
Commercial motor vehicle means any self-propelled or towed motor vehicle used on a highway in interstate commerce to transport passengers or property when the vehicle—
(1) Has a gross vehicle weight rating or gross combination weight rating, or gross vehicle weight or gross combination weight, of 4,536 kg (10,001 pounds) or more, whichever is greater[.]

*   *   *

For-hire motor carrier means a person engaged in the transportation of goods or passengers for compensation.
*   *   *

Motor carrier means a for-hire carrier or a private motor carrier.

The MHTC alleges that Mulkey violated state and federal laws.  Section 622.550, RSMo 2000, states that:
the division of motor carrier and railroad safety, and other authorized peace officers of this state and any civil subdivision of this state, may enforce any of the provisions of Parts 350 through 399 of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as those regulations have been and may periodically be amended, as they apply to motor vehicles and drivers operating in interstate or intrastate commerce within this state; except that the enforcement personnel of the division of motor carrier and railroad safety shall be authorized to enforce those regulations only within the terminals of motor carriers and private carriers by motor vehicle.

Section 307.400
 states:

1.  It is unlawful for any person to operate any commercial motor vehicle as defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, either singly or in combination with a trailer, as both vehicles are defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, unless such vehicles are equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as such regulations have been and may periodically be amended, whether intrastate transportation or interstate transportation. . . .

Count I


The MHTC asks us to find a violation of 49 CFR § 382.115(a) because, on April 16, 2004, Mulkey operated a commercial motor vehicle before he had implemented an alcohol and controlled substances testing program.

49 CFR § 382.115(a) states:

(a) All domestic-domiciled employers must implement the requirements of this part [relating to alcohol and drug testing] on the date the employer begins commercial motor vehicle operations.

The MHTC’s evidence shows and Mulkey admits that he had no drug or alcohol testing program in effect when he operated a commercial  motor vehicle.  We find that Mulkey violated 49 CFR § 382.115(a) one time.
Count II


The MHTC asks us to find a violation of § 307.400 and 49 CFR § 395.8(a) because, on April 14, 2004, Mulkey operated a commercial motor vehicle without making a record of duty status.

49 CFR 395.8(a) provides:

(a) Except for a private motor carrier of passengers (nonbusiness), every motor carrier shall require every driver used by the motor carrier to record his/her duty status for each 24 hour period using the methods prescribed in either paragraph (a)(1) or (2) of this section.

The MHTC’s evidence shows and Mulkey admits that he failed to record his duty status on one occasion.  We find that Mulkey violated 49 CFR § 395.8(a) one time and that this violates 
§ 307.400.
Count III


The MHTC asks us to find a violation of § 307.400 and 49 CFR § 395.8(k)(1) because, on April 5, 2004, Mulkey operated a commercial motor vehicle and failed to keep the driver’s record of duty status supporting documentation for six months after the date of transportation.

49 CSR § 395.8(k)(1) states:

(k) Retention of driver’s record of duty status.

(1) Each motor carrier shall maintain records of duty status and all supporting documents for each driver it employs for a period of six months from the date of receipt.

The MHTC’s evidence shows that Mulkey failed to keep a record of duty status supporting documents for six months after the date of transportation on April 5, 2004.  We find that Mulkey violated 49 CSR § 395.8(k)(1) on one occasion and that this violates § 307.400.

Count IV


The MHTC asks us to find that by operating a commercial motor vehicle without a valid property carrier registration on April 5, 12, and 30, 2004, Mulkey violated § 390.270, RSMo 2000, which states:
Except as otherwise provided in section 390.030, no person shall engage in the business of transporting property, except household goods, by motor vehicle for hire or compensation in intrastate commerce on any public highway in this state, unless there is in force with respect to the person a property carrier registration issued by the division pursuant to the provisions of sections 390.260 to 390.350, which authorizes such transportation.

The MHTC’s evidence shows and Mulkey admits that he did not have a valid property carrier registration on three occasions when he operated a commercial motor vehicle.  We find that Mulkey violated § 390.270, RSMo 2000.

Summary


Mulkey violated 49 CFR § 382.115(a).  He violated § 307.400 by his violation of 49 CFR § 395.8(a) and his violation of 49 CFR § 395.8(k)(1).  Mulkey violated § 390.270, RSMo 2000, on three occasions.  We cancel the hearing.

SO ORDERED on September 2, 2005.



________________________________



KAREN A. WINN



Commissioner

	�Statutory references, unless otherwise noted, are to the 2004 Supplement to the Revised Statutes of Missouri.


	�The MHTC also asks that we deem the allegations in its complaint admitted because Mulkey never responded to it.  The MHTC relies on Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.425(1)(A) and (2)(B), which allow us to sanction a party who does not file an answer by “[d]eeming all or any part of an opposing party’s pleading admitted[.]”  We need not rule on this because the MREC proved its case through evidence presented.  We also note that, in an exhibit attached to the motion, Mulkey admitted that he committed other acts, but this conduct was not set forth in the complaint.  We cannot find cause for discipline for uncharged conduct.  Missouri Dental Bd. v. Cohen, 867 S.W.2d 295, 297 (Mo. App., W.D. 1993).


	�Section 621.040; § 622.320, RSMo 2000.





	�Section 622.350.





	�Recent amendments to this regulation do not affect these definitions.


	�The version of § 307.400 applicable in this case was the version that was amended in 2003.  L. 2003, H.B. No. 371, A. We cite the version of the statute in the 2004 Supplement to the Revised Statutes of Missouri, despite the fact that the statute was amended again in 2004.  The 2004 amendment is to subsection 7 and does not affect the text of subsection 1.  L. 2004, S.B. Nos. 1233, 840 & 1043, A.
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